IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

)
ERIN LEVINE,)
)
Plaintiff,	
V.	
)
CVS PHARMACY, INC.;)
CONNECTICUT CVS)
PHARMACY, LLC; and)
FOURSTAR GROUP USA, INC.,)
Defendants)
Derenualits	

RM

CASE NO.: 3:21-cv-857

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

COMPLAINT

The plaintiff, Erin Levine, by and through her counsel, RisCassi & Davis, P.C., brings this action against the above-named defendants.

I. PARTIES

1. The plaintiff, Erin Levine, is a resident of the Town of Enfield, State of Connecticut.

2. At all times mentioned herein, the defendant CVS Pharmacy, Inc., with a principal business address of One CVS Drive, Woonsocket, Rhode Island, was, and continues to be, a Rhode Island corporation, which was authorized to transact business within the State of Connecticut.

3. At all times mentioned herein, the defendant Connecticut CVS Pharmacy, LLC, with a principal business address of One CVS Drive, Woonsocket, Rhode Island, was, and continues to be, a Connecticut limited liability company, which was authorized to transact

Case 3:21-cv-00857-KAD Document 1 Filed 06/23/21 Page 2 of 8

business within the State of Connecticut. The sole member of the defendant, Connecticut CVS Pharmacy, LLC, is the defendant, CVS Pharmacy, Inc.

4. At all times mentioned herein, the defendant Fourstar Group USA, Inc., with a principal business address of 189 Main Street, Suite 31, Milford, Massachusetts, was, and continues to be, a Delaware corporation, which was transacting business within the State of Connecticut.

II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. The amount in controversy exceeds the sum or value of \$75,000, exclusive of interest and costs. This civil action is between citizens of different states. The defendants maintain sufficient minimum contacts with the State of Connecticut such that the exercise of jurisdiction over the defendants by Connecticut courts would not offend traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice. By reason of the foregoing circumstances, this Court has diversity jurisdiction over this lawsuit. 28 U.S.C. § 1332(a)(1).

Venue is proper in this District because it is a judicial district in which a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to Plaintiff's claim occurred. 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a)(2).

III. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

7. The plaintiff, Erin Levine, incorporates by reference, as if fully set forth herein, each and every allegation in this Complaint.

8. At all times mentioned herein, the defendants, CVS Pharmacy, Inc., Connecticut CVS Pharmacy, LLC, and Fourstar Group USA, Inc. (hereinafter "the defendants"), their officers, agents, servants, and/or employees, designed, sold, manufactured, and/or delivered

Case 3:21-cv-00857-KAD Document 1 Filed 06/23/21 Page 3 of 8

products into the stream of commerce in Connecticut and are product sellers as defined by § 52-572m of the Connecticut General Statutes.

9. At all times mentioned herein, the defendant, CVS Pharmacy, Inc., its officers, agents, servants, and/or employees, were involved in the design, assembly, manufacture, testing, packaging, labelling, marketing, distribution, sale, and/or were otherwise involved in placing into the stream of commerce CVS Health Peas hot or cold therapy pack (hereinafter referred as "CVS Health Peas").

10. At all times mentioned herein, the defendant, Connecticut CVS Pharmacy, LLC, its officers, agents, servants, and/or employees, were involved in the design, assembly, manufacture, testing, packaging, labelling, marketing, distribution, sale, and/or were otherwise involved in placing into the stream of commerce CVS Health Peas.

11. At all times mentioned herein, the defendant, Fourstar Group USA, Inc., its officers, agents, servants, and/or employees, were involved in the design, assembly, manufacture, testing, packaging, labelling, marketing, distribution, sale, and/or were otherwise involved in placing into the stream of commerce CVS Health Peas.

12. At all times mentioned herein, the defendants designed, assembled, manufactured, tested, packaged, labelled, marketed, distributed, and/or sold CVS Health Peas with the intention that consumers, including those in the State of Connecticut, would heat the product in a conventional microwave oven and use said heated product for personal therapeutic relief.

13. At all times relevant herein, the defendants provided incomplete, insufficient, and/or misleading instructions, training, and/or information to users and consumers regarding how to properly and safely use the CVS Health Peas, including, but not limited to, failing to

Case 3:21-cv-00857-KAD Document 1 Filed 06/23/21 Page 4 of 8

provide instructions for heating the product in microwaves and/or the risks of injury attendant to the heating of said product.

14. At no time did the defendants provide warnings regarding the risk of the packaging rupturing after being heated in a microwave, despite numerous complaints on the CVS Health website from customers identifying such an issue.

15. On or about July 5, 2020, the plaintiff, Erin Levine, purchased CVS Health Peas from a CVS Pharmacy in Enfield, Connecticut.

16. The defendants designed, assembled, manufactured, tested, packaged, labelled, marketed, distributed, and/or sold the CVS Health Peas, which were purchased by the plaintiff, Erin Levine.

17. The CVS Health Peas reached the plaintiff, Erin Levine, without substantial change in their condition and were used in a reasonably foreseeable manner on July 5, 2020.

18. On or about July 5, 2020, the plaintiff, Erin Levine, put the CVS Heath Peas into her microwave oven and heated the product for 30 seconds, consistent with the instructions on the packaging. Upon removing the CVS Health Peas from the microwave, the plastic casing of the product suddenly, and without warning, ruptured and the heated contents were caused to spill out onto the plaintiff, Erin Levine, causing her to sustain personal injuries and losses, including, but not limited to:

- a) Burns to her right foot, requiring surgery;
- b) Burns to her right hand;
- c) Burns to her left hand;
- d) Scarring;
- e) Loss of sensation in her right foot;

Find authenticated court documents without watermarks at docketalarm.com.

- f) Physical and mental pain and suffering.
- 19. The incident that caused the harm to the plaintiff was of a kind that does not

ordinarily occur in the absence of a product defect and any defect most likely existed at the time

the product left the manufacturers' or sellers' control and was not the result of the causes not

attributable to the manufacturer or seller.

DOCKE

20. In addition to, and without limiting the allegations of the preceding paragraph, a

substantial factor in causing the plaintiff's injuries was the defendants' violation of Connecticut

General Statutes § 52-572m – § 52-572q in one or more of the following ways:

- a) the CVS Health Peas were improperly or inadequately designed;
- b) the CVS Health Peas were improperly or inadequately manufactured;
- c) the CVS Health Peas were improperly prepared for consumer use;
- d) the CVS Health Peas were improperly or inadequately assembled;
- e) the CVS Health Peas were improperly or inadequately fabricated;
- f) the CVS Health Peas were manufactured, assembled, designed, prepared, fabricated, tested, labeled, packaged, distributed and/or sold without adequate or proper precautions to prevent them from causing the injuries of the type suffered by the plaintiff;
- g) the CVS Health Peas were manufactured, assembled, designed, prepared, fabricated, tested, labeled, packaged, distributed and/or sold in a condition unreasonably dangerous for their intended use;
- h) the CVS Health Peas were manufactured, assembled, designed, prepared, fabricated, tested, labeled, packaged, distributed and/or sold without adequate or proper warnings regarding the risk of the product rupturing after microwave heating;
- i) the CVS Health Peas were manufactured, assembled, designed, prepared, fabricated, tested, labeled, packaged, distributed and/or sold without adequate or proper warnings regarding the risk of injury from the contents of the ruptured product;

DOCKET A L A R M



Explore Litigation Insights

Docket Alarm provides insights to develop a more informed litigation strategy and the peace of mind of knowing you're on top of things.

Real-Time Litigation Alerts



Keep your litigation team up-to-date with **real-time alerts** and advanced team management tools built for the enterprise, all while greatly reducing PACER spend.

Our comprehensive service means we can handle Federal, State, and Administrative courts across the country.

Advanced Docket Research



With over 230 million records, Docket Alarm's cloud-native docket research platform finds what other services can't. Coverage includes Federal, State, plus PTAB, TTAB, ITC and NLRB decisions, all in one place.

Identify arguments that have been successful in the past with full text, pinpoint searching. Link to case law cited within any court document via Fastcase.

Analytics At Your Fingertips



Learn what happened the last time a particular judge, opposing counsel or company faced cases similar to yours.

Advanced out-of-the-box PTAB and TTAB analytics are always at your fingertips.

API

Docket Alarm offers a powerful API (application programming interface) to developers that want to integrate case filings into their apps.

LAW FIRMS

Build custom dashboards for your attorneys and clients with live data direct from the court.

Automate many repetitive legal tasks like conflict checks, document management, and marketing.

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Litigation and bankruptcy checks for companies and debtors.

E-DISCOVERY AND LEGAL VENDORS

Sync your system to PACER to automate legal marketing.